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THE REBUILDING OF ST. PETERS BASiLICA AND THE VATICAN PALACE (Cent.)

URBAN_VIII (Cont.)}

The Cancpy or domed ciborium is 77 1/2
foet tall to the top of the cross and

is in harmony with the proportions of

the huge basilica. Bermini in this canopy
allowed a view of the apse and enhanced
the impression of lenght given by the
basilica, The four bronze columns rest
on marble bases adorned with the Barberini
arme of Urban VIIL.

The twisted pillars are divided into three
sections, surmounted by Ionic.Cordnthian
capitals, which are Joined by a cornice,
From this rises the canopy proper, crowned
by a cross., Four huge angels stand on
the capitals, with smsller angels between
them on the cornice, holding the tiara and
koys, the book and the sword, symbols of
Ssints Peter and Paul. -

To complete the decoration of this areas,
Bernini suggested that the upper niches of
the surrounding pillars of Michaelangelo's
dome should have logglias, from which could
be shown the most precious relies of 5t,
Paters Basilicaw~ the handkerchief of Ver.
onica, the Lance of Longinus, the large
section of the True Cross, found by St.

' Helena, and the head of St. Andrew. Larger
niches in the bases should contain statues
referring to these relics,

The Fabbrica approved the project on Dec-
ember 10, 1629, and entrusted the execuw
tion of the statue of longinus to Bernini,

The Canopy of Bernini., Right= Column of St. B ' An Bol S Veronica?
Seint Helena, repositiry of the large relic to‘Frzizgzcz gzcchgrzgd St%i;ndzizfs zzo ea’s
of the True Cross. Froneois Duquesnoy, & Fleming.,  Duquesnoy

was first to complete his statue, while the
others took years. The niches for these statues were faced with alsbastor.

Many wers jealous of Bernini, and a crack in the dome gave rise to the rumor that 1t was
aboud to crash down because of the drilling done in the pillars of the dome for the niches,
Staircased had been cut inte the pillars to give access to the loggias., When nothing
developed from the crack, the rumor died.

Urban VIIT saw to the decoration of the various chapels of St, Pelters Basilica with altar-
pleces by the best artists of the time. Michaslangelots "Pieta" stood in the choir
chapel, whence were iranslated the relics of St. John Chrysostom. Giotto's "Navicella®
was placed over one of the entrance doors. The Jubilee or Holy Year Door was erected
by Urban VII, and a great many of the gsepulchral monuments were executed and installed.

hwhh
The structure on the 60 L. commemorating the visit of Paul VI to Bombay is called the
GATE OF INDIA and is on the waterfront, All the big wigs visiting India enter

the city through this gate. The OVAL on the 25 L. 1s the location of the midna or
play areas for field hockey at which Indla excells
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ALEXANDER VIT,

In August 1655 Alexander VII ordered the laying of the marble floor
of 5t. Peters according to the plan of Bornini, who was also come
missioned Yo do the floor of the benediction loggia. A bas.relief
by Bernini was placed over the main entrance showing Christ appoine
ting St. Poter as shepherd of his flock. TFarther decoration of the
altars and chapels continued.

The old plazza of 5t., Peters was too small for the crowds that gathers
ed there on solemn occasions. Flans drawn up by Papirio Bartoll and
Carlo Rainaldl under Innocent X wore inadequate, though remarkable.
Aloxander VII placed this project in the hands of Bernini, who suc.
ceedad in creating unity of the square with the entrance of the Vat.
icdh and the rooms connecting the Vatican to St. Peters.

His first step was the staircase, the Scala Regia, which replaced the irregular, dark
asecent to the Ssla Regia and the Sistine Chapel with a commodiouns, wellwlighted stairease
of great beauty. This was begun in 1663 and finished in 1665, A niche was provided

for the equestrian statue of Constantine the Great, finished by Berminl under Alexander VII
but unvelled in 1670, This was to correspond with a status of Charlemagne at the eénd of
the portico of 5t, Peters, recalling the first two great protectors of the Church,. the
creator of the FEatern Bmpire and the founder of the Western Emplre on guard at the tomb

of St. Peter.

The Portico of St. Peters Basilica, showing the five doors
isading to the nave. Holy Year Door at right.

Over all objections Alexander VII put the project of the Square inte the hands of Bernini
on July 13, 1656. ‘'The Fabbrica then ordered the demolition of &1l bulldings from the
Plazza del Priorato to the Campo Santo on August 19, 1656, and the work began in September.
December saw the purchase and removal of more houses. : :
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Berninits original plan called for a two storied portico with a palace to the left corres-
ponding to the Vatican Palace. After prolonged study he sutmitted his sketches on Marech 17,
1657, showing the actual colonnade as it is today, and it was approved, Work began in
June, 1657,and medals struck at the time show a third portice which would have closed the
open part, but which was abandoned, The work was not complsted until November, 1666,

The first part of 1667 saw the beginning of the sloping flight of steps in place of those

of Paul V, and the rising corridors which join the colonnade to St. Peters, Daring this
time & whole band of sculptors under Bernini's direction was at work on the 96 statnes of
seints, five meters high, intended for the balustrade of the colonnade.

Bernini gave to the Piazza the form of an ellipse to which is Joined a quadrilateral,
wisening out in the direction of St, Peters. The quadrilateral i1s framed by the corri-
dors leading to the basilica and on the right by the enirance to the Vatican, This obiique
shape softens the impression of excessive width of the facade and pushes it back to make

it sppear loftier. .

The colommade is linked to the corridors and is formed by four rows of Doric columns
which are made of travertine. These 284 columns are fifteen fest high and are divided
inte groups by pilasters, 88 in number, bearing & plain entablature and attie with its
statues. The colonnade forms three corridors, the middle one belng vaulted and wide
enough for the passage of two carriages. Their practical purpose is to shelter pllgrims
from the sun and rain, a plan in the mind of Nicholas V when he planned the three approa.
chas to St. Peters, While this work was going on, the foundation for a second munumen=
tal fountain, corresvonding to that of Carle Maderno, was laid 1n 1667,

At this time the monument to the Chair of Peler
was designed and placed in the choir apse of 5t.
Peters enshrining the episcopal chair used by

the Apostle, Originally an oak chalr, its froni
and back had been decorated with antique ivory
‘4ablsts in the ninth century. Rings had been
added to admit staves so that it conld be used as
a sedis gestatoria. It had stood in the Bape
tistry of Pops Damasus in the Cld St, Peters,
and was the object of veneration before the ihird
gentury, vhen the Feast of the Chalr of St.Peter
was obseprved on February 22. Urban VIII had it
decorated and placed in the new baptistry. Innocent X had had it enclosed in a bronze

reliquary.

Bernini sketched a small model from which his pupils prepared a larger one. Work on it
was begun in 1657 and the casting completed in 1665, It required more bronze that the

baldachino, weighing 191,383 pounds. Glovanni Artusl da Pisecina directed its casting,

and its gilding was superintended by Carlo Mattei,

On Jamuary 18, 1666, the Feast of St. Peters Chair, the venerable chair was carried into
the cholr apse and enclosed in Bernini's monument, The base of the huge bronsze is of
multicolored marble, with the statues of Sts. Augustine and Gregory, Latin Fathers, and
Sts. Athanasius and John Chrysostom, Greek Fathers of the Church, supporting it

(Pastor, XXXI, pp. 284.304)

CLEMENT X,

Clement X saw the unveiling of Bernini's statue of Constantine, and worked for the complew.
tion of the statues on the colonnade. He resolved to erect the corresponding fountain to
Maderna's in 5t. Peters Square. The Maderna fountain was moved to its present site. It
was then discovered that the Acqua Paolina was insufficient to provide water for the two
fountains, so it was necessary to enlarge the agneduct from Lake Bracciano. Clement died

while this was in progress. (Pastor XXXI, p. k51, )
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